
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY 
Thursday, October 27, 2016 

3:30 PM 
Fargo City Commission Room 

Fargo City Hall 
200 3P

rd
P Street North 

 

1. Call to order 
 

2. Approve minutes from previous meeting  Item 2.   Action  
 

3. Approve order of agenda       Action 
 

4. Administrative/Legal        Information 
 

5. Technical         Information/action 

a. Recommended Contracting Actions  Item 6a. 

 

6. Other Business 
 

7. Executive Session (if needed) 
 

Meet in Executive Session pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-04-19 for the purpose of attorney client 
consultation and update regarding matters arising out of or related to the Minnesota DNR’s 
decision to deny the Dam Safety and Public Waters Work Permit Application submitted by 
the Metro Flood Diversion Authority 
 

8. Next Meeting – November 10, 2016 
 

9. Adjournment 
 

cc: Local Media 



                        Metro Flood Diversion Authority—October 13, 2016      1 

 

METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY 
OCTOBER 13, 2016—3:30 PM 

 
1. MEETING TO ORDER 

A meeting of the Metro Flood Diversion Authority was held Thursday, October 13, 2016, at 3:30 
PM in the Fargo City Commission Room with the following members present: Cass County 
Commission representative Darrell Vanyo; Cass County Commissioner Mary Scherling; Cass 
County Commissioner Ken Pawluk; Fargo City Mayor Tim Mahoney; Fargo City Commissioner 
Dave Piepkorn; Fargo City Commissioner Tony Grindberg; Moorhead City Mayor Del Rae 
Williams; Moorhead City Council Member Nancy Otto; Moorhead City Council Member Chuck 
Hendrickson; Clay County Commissioner Kevin Campbell; Clay County Commissioner Grant 
Weyland; Cass County Joint Water Resource District Manager Mark Brodshaug; and West 
Fargo City Commissioner Mike Thorstad.  
 

2. MINUTES APPROVED 
MOTION, passed 
Mr. Mahoney and Mrs. Scherling seconded to approve the minutes from 
the September 8, 2016, and October 5, 2016, meetings as presented. 
Motion carried. 
 

3. AGENDA ORDER 
MOTION, passed 
Mr. Weyland moved and Mr. Campbell seconded to approve the order of 
the agenda. Motion carried.   

 
4. MANAGEMENT UPDATE 

Program management consultant (PMC) report 
Randy Richardson from CH2M provided an update on activities over the last month including 
responses to the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the P3 contract, delivery of the mitigation 
plan to the MN DNR for their comments, release of the draft P3 technical requirements for 
review, Phase 1 land acquisition and opportunistic land acquisitions, and support of the Army 
Corps of Engineers design efforts on the southern embankment inlet structure. He said priority 
areas for the next month are development of the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the P3 
contract, a trip to Washington, D.C. to meet with officials from the Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB), draft 2017 annual budget, continued Phase 1 land acquisitions, continued in-
town construction, and I-29 conceptual designs.  
 

5. CORPS OF ENGINEERS UPDATE 
Aaron Snyder, Branch Chief for Project Management & Development, Corps of Engineers was 
present. The MN DNR recently released their decision to deny the permit that was submitted by 
the Diversion Authority. He said the Corps of Engineers remains committed to the project, which 
will provide permanent flood protection for the area. The Corps continues to work on minimizing 
the impacts to upstream residents. He said Corps staff met with Tom Landwehr, MN DNR 
Commissioner, to discuss ways to work toward a solution regarding their questions on the 
mitigation plan submitted by the Diversion Authority.  
 

6. ADMINISTRATIVE/LEGAL UPDATE 
Presentation of SOQ Evaluation/Approval of Resolution for Short-List of SOQ Agencies 
Attorney John Shockley provided a brief overview on the P3 developer short list. The P3 contract 
will be for the construction of the diversion channel. He discussed the timeline and said Request 
for Qualifications (RFQ) were issued in July with Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) due 
September 14th. An evaluation team reviewed the SOQ’s and interviewed six teams last week: 
Lake Agassiz Partners, Red River Alliance, Red River Infrastructure Solutions, Red River 
Partners, Red River Valley Alliance, and Red River Valley Partners.  

wordenh
Text Box
Item 2. 



                        Metro Flood Diversion Authority—October 13, 2016      2 

 

   
The Finance Committee and Cass County Joint Water Resource District approved the SOQ 
Evaluation Report and short list of four respondents, which are Lake Agassiz Partners, Red 
River Partners, Red River Valley Alliance, and Red River Valley Partners. Mr. Shockley said the 
next step in the process is Request for Proposals (RFP) from the four teams, who will be 
competing for the best technical and financial solutions. He said Diversion Authority members 
should not contact the teams; any contact should be between the Diversion Authority and the 
proposer’s authorized representatives. He anticipates the commercial close on the P3 contract 
will be done the last quarter of 2017, and the financial close will be done the first quarter of 2018. 
 
Mike Redlinger, Co-Executive Director of the Diversion Authority, said this is the conclusion of 
the first 90-day process. The thanked the technical and evaluation teams, Corps of Engineers, 
CH2M staff and John Shockley for their efforts. He concurs with their findings and recommends 
the board support the short list as presented.  

MOTION, passed 
Mr. Mahoney moved and Ms. Otto seconded to approve the “Resolution 
Approving the Report of the Evaluation Team Summarizing the Evaluation 
and Scoring of Statements of Qualifications Submitted in Response to 
Request for Qualifications to Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Maintain 
the Diversion Channel and Associated Infrastructure Work Package of the 
Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project and 
Short Listing Respondents for the Request for Proposals Phase of the 
Procurement”. On roll call vote, the motion carried unanimously.  

 
Mr. Shockley thanked the evaluation team and consultants for their work on the SOQ process. 
 
Draft Resolution – Procedure to Approve Contracts and Change Orders 
Mr. Shockley distributed a draft “Resolution Confirming the Procedure for Approval of 
Construction Contracts; Contracts for Engineering, Architectural, and other Professional 
Services; and Change Orders and Amendments” to the board. The resolution will establish 
procedures to follow when contracting actions are approved. He is not asking the board to take 
any action on this item today. The Finance Committee also reviewed the resolution, which he 
said needs to be further developed before it is approved. He asked board members to review 
the document and provide any comments to him.  
 
Mr. Grindberg said this resolution generated significant discussion at the Finance Committee 
meeting held yesterday and suggested a working group consisting of himself, Mr. Vanyo and 
technical committee members meet and review the draft document with the goal to formally 
approve the resolution in November.   
 

7. TECHNICAL UPDATE 
Recommended Contracting Actions Summary 
Randy Richardson reviewed the following Task Order Amendments:  
 
Task Order Amendments 

 AECOM Task Order 1 Amendment 5 (Cultural Resources Investigations)—reallocate funds 
from closed subtasks to active subtasks and extend period of performance to December 31, 
2017, at no cost. 

 HMG Task Order 20 Amendment 0 (Southern Embankment and Associated Infrastructure)—
I-29 grade raise design in the amount of $81,000. 

MOTION, passed 
Mr. Pawluk moved and Mr. Brodshaug seconded to approve the 
appropriation of funds for the outlined Task Order Amendments. 



                        Metro Flood Diversion Authority—October 13, 2016      3 

 

Discussion: Ms. Williams asked whether the Finance Committee approved 
the amendments. Mr. Grindberg said these are the types of items that will 
be addressed in the draft resolution previously discussed. On roll call 
vote, the motion carried unanimously.  
   

Ty Smith from CH2M reviewed the Change Orders and said they have been validated by the 
technical team and are not added scope items. Mr. Pawluk said he relies on the advice and 
review provided by the technical team. Mr. Grindberg said the process will be clear after final 
approval of the resolution, which will include procedures for change orders and contracts.  
 
Construction Change Orders 

 ICS, Inc. Change Order 6 (4th Street Pump Station)—stilling wells and other outstanding 
change items in the amount of $147,079.47. 

 Industrial Builders, Inc. Change Order 3 (2nd Street North, North of Pump Station)—plan 
sheet updates, retaining wall column, and additional bridge lighting for a deduction in the 
amount of $22,030.50. 

 Industrial Builders, Inc. Change Order 13 (2nd Street North, South of Pump Station)—utility 
vault adjustment, 1st Avenue North bridge spall removal, pump station elevation 
discrepancy, flared end section rip rap, and Case Plaza parking lot in the amount of 
$75,899.63. 

 Hough, Inc. of Detroit Lakes Change Order 1 (2nd Street South)—additional traffic control, 
differing subsurface conditions, repair existing storm sewer catch basin casting, gate valve 
and pipe, pavement markings, unsuitable material, and plan updates in the amount of 
$206,886.08. 

 Reiner Contracting, Inc. Change Order 3 (El Zagal Flood Risk Management Phase 2)—flood 
wall pier caps, sanitary lift station start-up, sidewalk tree removal, storm inlet structure 
casting, and property drainage adjustment in the amount of $9,401.21. 

MOTION, passed 
Mr. Pawluk moved and Mr. Grindberg seconded to approve the 
appropriation of funds for the outlined Change Orders. On roll call vote, 
the motion carried unanimously.  

 
Mr. Richardson reviewed one utility relocation in which the Diversion Authority previously 
agreed to reimburse the City of Fargo to relocate a fiber optic cable on 2nd Street South.  
 
Utility Relocation 

 City of Fargo—reimbursement to the City of Fargo for fiber optic cable relocation along 2nd 
Street in the amount of $307,983.70. 

MOTION, passed 
Mrs. Scherling moved and Ms. Otto seconded to approve the appropriation 
of funds for the outlined Utility Relocation. On roll call vote, the motion 
carried unanimously.  

 
8. PUBLIC OUTREACH UPDATE 

Committee report 
The Public Outreach Committee met on October 12th. Rocky Schneider from AE2S said the 
Business Leaders Task Force launched a campaign regarding the upcoming sales tax vote. He 
said Mayor Mahoney and Board Chairman Darrell Vanyo testified before the Water Topics 
Overview Committee in September and provided a project update to the North Dakota State 
Water Commission earlier this month. The outreach team continues to participate in various 
community outreach activities and presentations. He said the newsletter continues to see a 
steady increase in subscribers with a significant click through rate of 49%.  
  



                        Metro Flood Diversion Authority—October 13, 2016      4 

 

9. FINANCE UPDATE 
Committee report 
The Finance Committee met on October 12th.  Mr. Grindberg said the committee discussed the 
SOQ short list and the Contract/Change Order process.  
 

 Voucher approval 
The bills for the month are with CCJWRD for costs associated with the Metro Flood Diversion, 
in-town levees, OHB levee, and Oxbow Country Club golf course construction; Dorsey & 
Whitney LLP for legal services; Erik R. Johnson & Associates, Ltd. for legal services; and 
Ohnstad Twichell, P.C. for P3 bond counsel.  
 
Kent Costin, Fargo Finance Director, said $5 million of the $8.9 million in total bills for the last 
month is for the Diversion Authority’s share of the Mid America Steel property acquisition.  

MOTION, passed 
Mr. Grindberg moved and Mr. Pawluk seconded to approve the vouchers 
in the amount of $8,993,205.83 for September, 2016. On roll call vote, the 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Attorney John Shockley said under North Dakota state law the board is allowed to meet in private 
session to consult with legal counsel.  
 MOTION, passed 

Ms. Otto moved and Mrs. Scherling seconded that the Metro Flood 
Diversion Authority meet in executive session pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-
04-19 for the purpose of attorney client consultation and update regarding 
matters arising out of or related to the Minnesota DNR’s decision to deny 
the Dam Safety and Public Waters Work Permit Application submitted by 
the Metro Flood Diversion Authority.  Motion carried. 

 
Diversion Authority board members, key administrative and engineering staff, and Attorney John 
Shockley moved to the River Room at 4:41 PM. Also present via conference call was Attorney 
Robert Cattanach from Dorsey & Whitney LLP.  
 
The executive session ended at 5:45 PM and the meeting was re-opened to the public. 
 

11. NEXT MEETING DATE 
The next meeting will be held on Thursday, October 27, 2016.  
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 MOTION, passed 
On motion by Mr. Pawluk, seconded by Ms. Otto, and all voting in favor, 
the meeting was adjourned at 5:46 PM. 
 

 Minutes prepared by Heather Worden, Cass County Administrative Assistant 



Recommended_Contracting_Actions_Summary_2016_1027 

Recommended Contracting Actions Summary

Date:  October 27, 2016 

Description  Company 
Budget 

Estimate ($) 

Construction Change Orders 

6.a.2  WP‐42A1/A3, 4th Street Pump Station
Change Order 07 

 Add Brackets for the Sanitary Overflow Piping

 Add ST‐4 Flared End with Grate

 Add Sluice Gate Actuator Covers and Handwheel Nuts

 No cost Change: Updated Grading Plan

 Add 306 days to each original contract date for Demolition,
Generator Building, Substantial Completion, and Final Completion
for box culvert deficiency resolution

 Add 3 days to Contract Milestones for asbestos wrapped pipe and
pump house foundation removal work

ICS, Inc.  7,689.91 

Item 6a.



METRO FLOOD DIVERSION PROJECT 

TAG_CONTRACTINGRECOMMENDATIONFORM_WP-42A1-A3_CO-07_20161019 1 

Technical Advisory Group Recommendation Meeting Date: 10/19/2016 
RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION: 

The Technical Advisory Group has reviewed and recommend approval of the following Contract Action(s). 

SUMMARY OF CONTRACTING ACTION: 
The Owner’s Representative has reviewed and recommends the following Contract Action(s): 

List description of Contract Action(s):   

Description 
Budget 

Estimate ($) 

ICS, Inc. 

Change Order #07 $7,689.91 
WP-42A.1/A.3, 4th Street Pump Station – Additional Brackets for Sanitary Overflow Piping, ST-4 Flared End With Grate, 
Sluice Gate Actuator Covers and Handwheel Nuts, Updated Lot Grading Plan, Contract Milestone, Project Substantial 
Completion, and Final Completion Date and Time Resets, and Time Added to Milestones 6, 7, and Project Substantial 
Completion for Asbestos Wrapped Pipe Disposal and Additional Foundation Removal. 

Summary of Contracting History and Current Contract Action: 

Original 
Agreement or 
Amendment 

Budget ($) 
Change 

Previous Project 
Cost 

Revised Project 
Cost Project Start 

Project 
Completion Comments 

WP-42A.1/A.3 
contract 

17,361,616.35 0.00 17,361,616.35 11-Dec-14 11-Nov-16 Awarded 4th Street Pump 
Station and 2nd Street South 
Floodwall 

Change Order 1 268,555.24 17,361,616.35 17,630,171.59 11-Dec-14 11-Nov-16 Fargo Highrise parking lot 
modifications and other costs 

Change Order 2 176,462.97 17,630,171.59 17,806,634.56 11-Dec-14 11-Nov-16 Unknown underground 
structures and other costs 

Change Order 3 (10,570.93) 17,806,634.56 17,796,063.63 11-Dec-14 11-Nov-16 Deduct exterior electrical work 
and install fence, bollards, and 
lights at Fargo Highrise 

Change Order 4 15,174.67 17,796,063.63 17,811.238.30 11-Dec-14 11-Nov-16 Time extensions and multiple 
cost adjustments for Engineer- 
and Owner-directed items. 

Change Order 5 70,363.71 17,811,238.30 17,881,601.31 11-Dec-14 11-Nov-16 Last of suspended changes, 
sanitary overflow connection, 
T&M budget for ACM removal 

Change Order 6 147,079.47 17,881,601.31 18,028,681.48 11-Dec-14 11-Nov-16 Last of suspended changes, 
erosion blanket, still wells, 
unsuitable materials and 
additional asbestos wrapped 
pipe. 



TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP RECOMMENDATION 

2 TAG_CONTRACTINGRECOMMENDATIONFORM_WP-42A1-A3_CO-07_20161019 

Change Order 7 7,689.91 18,028,681.48 18,036,371.39 11-Dec-14 11-Nov-16 Sanitary Overflow Brackets, 
ST-4 Flared End with Grate, 
Sluice Gate Actuator Covers 
and 2” nuts, Updated Lot 
Grading Plan, Milestone and 
Project Completion Date 
Resets, and Time Additions. 

DISCUSSION 

Change Order No. 7 increases the Contract Price by a total of $7,689.91, replaces the Site Grading Plan, and 
increases the Contract Times by 309 days to the Demolition and Generator Building Milestones and Substantial 
Completion, and 306 days to Final Completion as listed below: 

1. Additional Brackets for the Sanitary Overflow Piping. Sanitary Overflow Piping was approved in WCD 007
and Change Order 05 and has been installed in ST-6. However, after installation and review, the engineer
recommends additional brackets be installed at the lower end of the pipes to counteract forces applied
during high flow events. Stainless and non-stainless versions were considered. The stainless version is
approximately $500 more, would be sourced from out of the area with a 4 week lead time required.  The
city prefers the non-stainless option that can be sourced locally and has a much shorter lead time. Add
$2,125.48 to the Contract Price to accommodate furnishing and installing additional brackets in ST-4 and
the adjacent Sanitary Sewer manhole. CH2M and the Engineer have reviewed this cost and found it
reasonable.

2. ST-4 Flared End with Grate. The project was not originally designed with a grate at the south end of the
inlet to ST-4. At the city’s request, a flared end with a grate will be installed to keep large material from
entering the storm sewer system. Add $3,522.33 to the Contract Price for this addition. The Owner’s
Representative and Engineer have reviewed this cost and found it to be reasonable.

3. Sluice Gate Actuator Covers and Handwheel Nuts. Changes were made to the 2nd St. North Pump Station
in the 42 A.2 Change Order 09. It was noted by the city that there were no lockable covers to prevent the
public from operating the sluice gates, and a 2 inch nut adapter could be added to operate the gates more
easily with a portable drill. The city has requested that the same modifications be installed at the 4th St.
Pump Station Sluice Gates. Add $2042.10 to the Contract Price to furnish and install these items. The
Owner’s Representative has reviewed this price and considers it reasonable.

4. Plan Updates. The Lot Grading Plan has been updated. This replaces the existing Sheet C-055-8 with the
version dated 10/27/2016. This is a no cost change.

5. Reset Contract Dates and Times. During negotiation for a resolution to the box culvert deficiency, CH2M
sent a letter to ICS on June 9, 2016 that explained how the Owner would adjust Contract milestones for
the rest of the project. The adjustment would be based on the actual completion date of the pump station
milestone, and extend all subsequent milestones according to their durations after the original pump
station milestone.

For example, the duration between the original pump station milestone (November 13, 2015) and the
demolition milestone (January 27, 2016) is 77 days. ICS actually achieved the pump station milestone on
September 14, 2016. Therefore, the demolition milestone will be adjusted to 77 days after this date, or
November 11, 2016. Following this method, all new milestones are shown in the table below:



TECHNICAL ADVISORY GROUP RECOMMENDATION 

TAG_CONTRACTINGRECOMMENDATIONFORM_WP-42A1-A3_CO-07_20161019 3 

Milestone Original Date Days After Pump Station New Date 
Pump Station 11/13/15 NA 9/14/16 (actual) 
Demolition 1/27/16 77 11/30/16 
Generator Building 9/5/16 297 7/8/17 
Substantial Completion 9/5/16 297 7/8/17 
Final Completion 11/11/16 364 9/13/17 

All of these revised dates are 306 days later than the original dates. Add 306 days to each original date for 
Demolition, Generator Building, Substantial Completion, and Final Completion. 

6. Add Time to Contract Milestones. Asbestos wrapped pipe was discovered during the removal of the twin
78” outfall pipes and the ductile iron force mains. Change Orders 04 and 05 contained budgets to dispose
of them. The work was completed on a time and materials basis and now that it is complete, there was a
two day delay related to their removal. Change Order 05 also included the removal of an additional 4 feet
of old pumphouse foundation to be done on a time and materials basis. Now that this work has been
completed, there was one additional day of delay. Add 3 days to the demolition, generator building, and
Substantial Completion milestones.. The Owner’s Representative has reviewed this schedule extension
and considers it accurate.

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Draft Change Order No. 7 

Submitted by: 

Tyler Smith, P.E. 
CH2M   
Project Manager 
Metro Flood Diversion Project 

Date 

Keith Berndt, Cass County Administrator April Walker, Fargo City Engineer 
Concur:  Non-Concur: Concur: Non-Concur 

Mark Bittner, Fargo Director of Engineering Jason Benson, Cass County Engineer 
Concur:  Non-Concur:  Concur: Non-Concur 

David Overbo, Clay County Engineer Robert Zimmerman, Moorhead City Engineer 
Concur: Non-Concur: Concur:  Non-Concur 

Nathan Boerboom, Diversion Authority Project 
Manager 
Concur: Non-Concur: 

October 19, 2016

October 19, 2016

October 19, 2016

October 19, 2016October 19, 2016

October 19, 2016

October 19, 2016


	METRO FLOOD DIVERSION 10-27-16AGN
	Item 2



